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1. On the signatures part, does that also include subcontractors? That is, if you have a number of subcontractors, are they also required to provide signatures, or is only the prime contractor required to sign?
Only the signature of the prime contractor is required to execute the grant agreements that will result from these solicitations.
2. On the funds spent in California, if a subcontractor’s headquarters is out-of-state, does that apply to anyone that works for that firm, even if they are located in California? To clarify, if you have an out-of-state-headquartered subcontractor, but they have staff in California and that staff works on the project, is that considered funds spent in California?
Please see Scoring Criteria 6 in both GFO-15-303 and PON-14-507, which states that in part that “Spent in California” means that: (1) Funds under the “Direct Labor” category and all categories calculated based on direct labor in the B-4 budget attachments (Prime and Subcontractor Labor Rates) are paid to individuals who pay California state income taxes on wages received for work performed under the agreement; and (2) Business transactions (e.g., material and equipment purchases, leases, rentals, and contractual work) are entered into with a business located in California.
3. Looking at the solicitation manual scoring criteria, it seems like non-California resident wages and fringe for staff who perform work within California and file California non-resident tax returns would count toward the total proportion of Funds Spent in California. Is this a correct interpretation? If so, how is the information provided by proposing organizations and/or subcontractors who are headquartered outside of California and will use non-California-resident staff to perform work under the agreement in the state of California for which they will be liable for California state income taxes?
See Question 2. 
4. In Attachment 9, the Reference and Work Product Form, Section 2 (Work Products) says to include copies of up to three recent relevant technical publications. Is that per application, per subcontractor, or per team member? Are you looking for three publications for the application?
For both GFO-15-303 and PON-14-507, Section 2 requires up to three publications of the Applicant or project team members. The three publications are for the entire application. 
5. I see nothing here about conflict of interest, and in fact Applicants are supposed to team with or cooperate with utilities. I assume there can be no conflict of interest for anything we do with the utility or proposals for the utility. There’s also some reference to possible association with other groups because there could be industry associations or possibly private sector promoters of one thing or another. I assume there is inherently no conflict of interest if one teams with someone who knows about particular technologies but is also promoting them?
It is not necessarily the case that no conflict of interest could exist for anything a Recipient does with a utility. It is not necessarily the case that there is no conflict of interest if a Recipient “teams with” someone who knows about and promotes particular technologies. It is incumbent on the Recipient to determine whether or not work done under the proposed agreements would constitute a conflict of interest for that recipient in relation to other contracts the recipient may have. Please note that these solicitations do not contain terms specific to conflicts of interest. 
6. If either the prime or any of the subs is currently engaged with any of the candidate partner utilities, IOUs, in say demand management, evaluation, or any other such related studies, does that constitute a conflict of interest with a potential utility partner? 
It is incumbent on the Recipient to determine whether or not work done under the proposed agreements would constitute a conflict of interest for that recipient in relation to other contracts the recipient may have. Please note that these solicitations do not contain terms specific to conflicts of interest.
7. Can a private company on its own submit an application?
Yes, a private company can submit an application on its own for both GFO-15-303 and PON-14-507.
8. In the scoring criteria, you include things that are related to the cost, and you give points to whether the rates are loaded and what the ratio of those are. In the screening criteria, can cost be a disqualifying factor? Specifically, how is profit treated in the scoring criteria?
For the scoring criteria in both GFO-15-303 (page 33) and PON-14-507 (page 31), the treatment of criterion 5, “Budget and Cost-Effectiveness,” varies for each application depending on the overall proposed budget. Because there’s nothing about cost or overhead rates in the screening criteria (GFO-15-303 page 31, PON-14-507 page 29), it is not a disqualifying factor. However, profit for recipients is disallowed. Profit for subcontractors may be allowed at 10 percent of project expenses. This must be demonstrated in the budget; the budget must not include any profit as an item to be reimbursed by the Energy Commission, match share, or as part of overhead or general and administrative expenses. Please see section III.C.7.4 in both PON-14-507 (page 24) and GFO-15-303 (page 26).
9. In the Terms and Conditions, there are definitions for allowable and unallowable costs, and for the prime Applicant, one of the unallowable costs is profit, so if we were to identify in our cost sheet the profit, would that then disqualify us for the application? For a for-profit company, what would it take to show that we in fact are not incorporating somehow our profit, in a bid or a budget or an application, other than just not putting a number there? Because a for-profit company tends to make a profit. We’re just trying to figure out if we were to in fact forgo the pursuit of profit on a particular application, how would we truly demonstrate that we have done that?
Profit for recipients is disallowed. Profit for subcontractors may be allowed at 10 percent of project expenses. This must be demonstrated in the budget; the budget must not include any profit as an item to be reimbursed by the Energy Commission, match share, or as part of overhead or general and administrative expenses. Please see section III.C.7.4 in both PON-14-507 (page 24) and GFO-15-303 (page 26).
10. The EPIC grant terms posted on the website state that profit/fee is not allowed for prime contractors but it is allowable for subcontractors. We are a for-profit company. Is it correct to assume that profit/fee is not an allowable cost for prime contractors who receive awards under PON-14-507, including for Group 4 applications, but we would be allowed to charge profit/fee if we are a subcontractor on such an award?
See Question 9. 
11. On Attachment 9, the Reference and Work Product Form, are we able to use Energy Commission employees as references for this form?
No, an Energy Commission employee may not be used as a reference for either GFO-15-303 or PON-14-507. 
12. Do references in the Work Product have to match? Or can they be from different people?
For GFO-15-303 and PON-14-507, Attachment 9 requires both References and Work Product information. References (Section 1) can be different for the Recipient and Subcontractor, and they do not have to match any of the information provided under Work Products (Section 2). 

13. Can you explain how we’re supposed to use Attachment 12, References for Calculating Energy End-Use, Electricity Demand, and Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions?
For GFO-15-303 and PON-14-507, Attachment 12 will most likely not apply to Applications for this solicitation, unless there is a project that will result in actual GHG emission reductions. In this case, the Applicant will need to estimate such reductions using Attachment 12. 
14. Was there anything covered in the application requirements in the workshop that differs from the solicitation document?
No, the application requirements covered in the workshop did not differ from the solicitation documents. The workshop briefly covered everything in the solicitation documents, and the presentation is consistent with the application requirements text in the solicitations. Please note the Addendum for both GFO-15-303 and PON-14-507 for changes or additions to the solicitation documents.
15. Is there a DVBE (Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise) requirement?
No, there is no DVBE requirement for the solicitations. However, there is a California-Based Entity (CBE) criterion for the Natural Gas solicitation, PON-14-507, under which preference points are awarded to CBEs. 
16. Are the utilities eligible to lead proposals?
Yes, the investor-owned utilities are eligible to lead proposals for both solicitations. However, publicly owned utilities are not. 
17. Regarding ratepayer dollars and exclusions associated with EPIC funding, are applicants allowed to partner with municipal utilities? Can municipal utilities receive benefits from EPIC-funded projects?
The projects funded by GFO-15-303 will be evaluated based on benefits to IOU ratepayers. There is no prohibition on municipal utility/ratepayer benefits from spillover effects, but the project must show IOU ratepayer benefits. 
18. During the Pre-Application Workshop Presentation, Energy Commission staff mentioned that previously funded grant applications could be made available for interested parties. How would one access such documents?
You can email the Commission Agreement Officer for that particular solicitation to request the documents. The prior solicitation released by the Environmental Area group in the Research Division was PON-14-309. For more information about this PON, please go to: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#PON-14-309. 
19. Page 26 of the GFO states that “subcontractor profit is allowable, though the maximum percentage allowed is 10 percent of project expenses.” Does this statement mean 10 percent of total project cost or 10% of “expenses” as in “other direct costs”?
The 10 percent cap on subcontractors’ profit refers to 10 percent of the subcontract amount. This information refers to both solicitations and can be found in GFO-15-303 (page 26) and in PON-14-507 (page 24).
20. Regarding Attachment 4, the Project Narrative Form, Item 3, Impacts and Benefits to California Ratepayers, is it sufficient for the Applicant to discuss qualitative or intangible benefits to California ratepayers, rather than include quantitative estimates of potential benefits to ratepayers?
Yes, for these solicitations, it is sufficient for the application to limit discussion to qualitative or intangible benefits to California ratepayers. Please note that Applications must address how the proposed project will benefit California Investor-Owned Utility (IOU) ratepayers in terms of greater reliability, lower costs, and/or increased safety.
21. On page 11, Section A.4. California-Based Entities, it states the budget must show that the CBE(s) will receive 60.00% or more of the funds awarded. However, the budget form does not have an area to document this requirement. Where should we place this information?
An addendum has been released for PON-14-507 that ensures the Budget Form (Attachment 7) includes a worksheet that documents funds to California-Based Entities (CBEs).
22. On page 33, it states that the scoring criteria #6 for documenting funds “Spent in California” should be in B-4 of the budget forms. However, this section is not within the budget forms. Where shall we indicate such funds?
An addendum has been released for both GFO-15-303 and PON-14-507 that ensures the Budget Form (Attachment 7) includes this information.
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23. Are small clean fusion reactors of interest for this EPIC solicitation?
No, we are not currently funding this opportunity. Please read through the groups for specific funding opportunities for solicitation GFO-15-303.
24. For the EPIC solicitation, are immediate or short-term solutions the only ones considered?
For GFO-15-303, we are looking both for proposals that could have an immediate impact and for proposals that could have an impact in the next 10 to 30 years.
25. Are there GIS data sources available that identify transmission and distribution (a) sites, (b) efficient, (c) equipment?
The Energy Commission has GIS data as described in the energy maps generated by the Energy Commission (http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/). It is important to note that the Energy Commission requires non-disclosure agreements to access the GIS layers, and the Energy Commission’s Legal Office must approve these requests. In the past, the Energy Commission has shared data sets with other governmental entities and Universities willing to sign non-disclosure agreements. 
The Energy Commission does not currently have data sets for the electrical distribution system. Therefore, the proponents should plan to work with the IOUs to obtain these GIS data sets. Please also consult the Energy Commission website for information about other data sources for energy consumption and efficiency.  
26. Will confidential information about the location of electricity infrastructure that the Energy Commission has be made available for work on potential projects? 
See Question 25.
27. Are there GIS data sources available that identify regional variation in seasonal energy consumption?
Please check the energy consumption databases available on the Energy Commission’s website (http://www.ecdms.energy.ca.gov/). Please also note the recent CPUC Decision 14-05-016 that may allow access of energy data from electric utilities. A summary of the Decision is as follows: “Through the new process, the investor-owned utilities (IOUs) are required to fulfill requests for energy usage and usage-related information when those requests are made by academic researchers. To qualify for access the researcher must be affiliated with a non-profit college or university accredited by a national or regional accrediting agency, which in turn must be formally recognized by the U.S. Secretary of Education. The researcher must also be a faculty member or be sponsored by a faculty member.” Consult the Decision for more complete information: http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M090/K845/90845985.PDF.
28. Are the GIS datasets already discussed on the call such as wildfire scenarios and modeled sea level rise available?
The scenarios discussed in Groups 1 and 2 for GFO-15-303 (pages 12 and 13) are not yet available but will be soon. For example, the wildfire scenarios will be available in early 2016. The intention is that the successful Applicant for this topic would coordinate with the group at UC Merced that is developing wildfire scenarios for California to ensure that the content and format of the data will support the Applicant’s proposed analysis. For more information, please check http://www.energy.ca.gov/research/notices/2015-02-27_workshop/presentations/, in particular the presentation by Prof. Westerling. 
Additionally, the scope of work for the non-energy part of the Fourth Assessment, California’s next Climate Change Assessment (http://resources.ca.gov/climate/fourth/), indicates that additional wildfire scenarios may be generated using a dynamic process-based model or models. This is another potential source of information. 
29. For EPIC and Natural Gas solicitations, there is an emphasis on including the utility partners. Have those utility partners been identified and connected with at this point, or is that up to contractors to initiate those contacts? 
Applicants must contact utilities on their own initiative for both solicitations.
30. There were three proposals recently awarded under the Energy Commission solicitation PON-14-309 “Reduce the Environmental and Public Health Impacts of Electricity Generation and Make the Electricity System Less Vulnerable to Climate Change Impacts” in Research Topic 5.4a, all of which focus on determining risks and impacts due to climate change on the electricity system and developing resilience strategies. Proposals requested under GFO-15-303 Groups 2 and 3 seem to overlap with the content in PON-14-309’s awarded proposals. How does the focus of the projects requested under GFO-15-303 differ from the proposed research in the proposals awarded under PON-14-309?
The three proposals awarded under the Energy Commission’s PON-14-309 Research Topic 5.4a deal with “Long-term Energy Scenarios for California and Their Environmental Consequences.” Specifically, these long-term, multisectoral, statewide energy modeling efforts explore scenarios that are compliant with California's policy goals, technically and economically plausible, and robust to a changing climate. On the other hand, projects requested under GFO-15-303 do not deal with comprehensive statewide modeling of the energy system. Rather, the first two areas explore sea level rise and wildfire-related impacts, respectively, at a level of detail appropriate to inform actual planning and regulatory activities working very closely with relevant IOUs. The third area is an open request for investigation of innovative grid management and operation strategies to overcome current and projected climate-related limitations, as well as provide for integration of more renewable generation. The fourth area seeks to provide electricity sector stakeholders with visualizations, tools, and outreach that support incorporation of climate science into resilient decision-making. The four project areas of GFO-15-303 differ from topic 5.4a of PON-14-309 in scope, methodology, and desired output.
31. Is the Energy Commission’s intention to make only one award under each project group? Or to make multiple awards within each project group whose combined cost does not exceed the available funding?
For both solicitations, where the “available funding” is equal to the “maximum award amount,” it is likely that the Energy Commission would make only one award for that project group (see page 6 of both solicitations). However, the Energy Commission reserves the right to add to, remove, or shift funding between the different groups.
32. Page 25 of the GFO, section 6 states, “All work must be scheduled for completion within 36 to 48 months of the project start date.” What is the minimum project duration – must it be at least 36 months? Can the project duration be shorter than 36 months?
For agreements resulting from either solicitation, we do not recommend a project term of less than 30 months to ensure sufficient time to complete the research and final report. However, it is fine if projects finish ahead of schedule.




	27	GFO-15-303
		PON-14-507
[bookmark: _Toc290029622]Groups
[bookmark: _Toc290029623]GFO-15-303: Electricity Sector Vulnerability Studies and Adaptation Options to Promote Resilience in a changing Climate
Group 1: Potential Impacts and Adaptation Options for the Electricity System from Sea Level Rise
33. Does the project need to evaluate sea level rise exposure for all IOU facilities in the state, or is it acceptable to focus only the facilities in one IOU territory? Is the expectation that the grant recipient receive commitment letters from all IOUs?
No, it is not necessary that the project evaluates sea level rise for all IOU facilities in the state; rather, the research must “cover at least one geographical subunit in California (local or regional) and work very closely with the affected electric investor-owned utility (IOU) and the relevant local and regional agency or agencies.” As articulated in the application manual, the project must study vulnerability and adaptation options “at a level of detail that can inform actual planning and regulatory activities.” Note that sea level rise projections will be available from other research projects supported by the Energy Commission.  
Group 2: Wildfires, Climate Change, and Impacts to Transmission and Distribution Lines
34. Does the project need to evaluate wildfire vulnerability for all IOU facilities in the state, or is it acceptable to focus only the facilities in one IOU territory? Is the expectation that the grant recipient receive commitment letters from all IOUs?
There is no requirement for the application to evaluate all IOU facilities. It is desired that a diversity of distribution circuits be assessed, but they could all be located in a single IOU territory. Commitment letters are strongly recommended from each IOU in which the assessment is conducted, both committing to access to proprietary spatial and non-spatial data and to collaboration on developing vulnerability metrics that will be useful to the IOU. Since formal commitment letters may take time to obtain, Applicants must at least demonstrate that there is a high likelihood of being able to secure the collaboration from the relevant IOU. 
Please note that commitment letters are not a part of the screening criteria. Therefore, Applicants will not be rejected if they do not include one. 

Group 3: Development of Innovative Strategies to Foster a More Adaptive, Resilient Energy System under Present and Future Climate Conditions
35. Will the Energy Commission be considering projects that focus on the local city level and for feasibility studies as opposed to pilot/implementation projects? Specifically, would the Energy Commission consider a proposal for a feasibility study of a solar microgrid within a city that can have benefits on the existing electricity grid including greater reliability, lower costs, increased safety, and reduced GHG emissions?
Yes, as long as it is a research project and clearly complies with the requirements for this specific group as described in pages 15, 16, and 17, as well as other eligibility requirements. 
36. To clarify, the entire $500,000 amount may be awarded to one project?
Yes, one project may request up to $500,000 for this group.
Group 4: Visualizing Climate-Related Risks to the Electricity System Using Cal-Adapt
37. The solicitation says “develop tools,” so Cal-Adapt is a tool, but you want to develop something better than what Cal-Adapt has to offer, or are you looking for some improvements?
Cal-Adapt is both a tool in itself and a platform for development of further tools that leverage the data available through Cal-Adapt, such as climate change projections. For example, Cal-Adapt currently hosts an extreme heat tool, which was developed with the public health community in mind. However, other stakeholders may have a different definition of “extreme heat” and could create additional tools using definitions that are appropriate to their needs.
This work will also be part of California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment, so the successful Applicant should be willing to work with the other research teams to bring sophisticated scientific results to Cal-Adapt in a manner that is easy to understand and use in support of climate resilient decision-making.
38. Are we expecting that this would be something that these tools would all be publicly available, or would some of these tools be private at different spatial resolutions for the energy sector? Would it be a combination of those two, public and private?
Since we are using public funds, everything has to be in the public domain. If there are privacy concerns, the level of geographical detail in the Applications could be limited to eliminate these concerns. 
39. Concerning RD&D needs in the area of communication and outreach, is it expected as part of this proposal that “guidance or management options to increase resilience to climate change related vulnerabilities” will be developed by the Energy Commission, or by the recipient of the award?
The “guidance or management options to increase resilience to climate change-related vulnerabilities” referenced in the GFO would not be developed by the recipient of the award. Rather, these guidance and/or management options would draw on official state guidance documents, informal technical guidance (e.g., related to appropriate use of regionally downscaled climate change projections), scientific research on and case studies of appropriate management options. This material would be identified by Energy Commission staff as well as the Technical Advisory Committee, with a potential role for Cal-Adapt users to bring additional resources to our attention. The role of the awardee would be to help make stakeholders aware of this material through a well-designed website and outreach efforts.
40. Under RD&D needs in the area of communication and outreach regarding case studies of climate adaptation in the electricity sector: will these case studies be developed by the Energy Commission, or by the recipient of the award?
These case studies would not be developed by the recipient of the award. Rather, this material would be identified by Energy Commission staff as well as the Technical Advisory Committee, in consultation with the selected research team, and potentially by Cal-Adapt users who share their experience in the form of case studies. The role of the awardee would be to help make stakeholders aware of this material through a well-designed website and outreach efforts.
41. Are there existing 3rd party tools that the Energy Commission would like to incorporate into the final product?
No existing 3rd party tools have been identified as items that must be incorporated into the final product. However, possible coordination and collaboration with existing platforms such as the U.S. Climate Resilience Tool (https://toolkit.climate.gov/) and Data Basin (http://databasin.org/) will be considered during the tenure of this contract. The successful Applicant will be able and willing to help Cal-Adapt refine its role, reach target users associated with California’s energy systems, and leverage other tools.
42. Will the models developed in Publication Number: CEC‐500‐2012‐057 (Sathaye et al., 2012) that estimate impacts to the energy infrastructure due to projected climate change be available for use in this project?
All non-confidential Energy Commission-sponsored research results will be available for use in this project, including results associated with Publication Number CEC-500-2012-057. Note, however, that for some data layers (such as those representing the energy infrastructure) security issues may be such that restrictions on the use of the associated data may apply (e.g., limitations on the amount of zoom or the ability to download GIS files).
43. Will the recipient of the award have access to the peak electricity demand and supply data as shown in Publication Number CEC‐500‐2012‐057, Figure 2, Peak Electricity Demand and Supply in California (Sathaye et al., 2012)?
All non-confidential Energy Commission-sponsored research results will be available for use in this project, including results associated with Publication Number CEC-500-2012-057. Note, however, that for some data layers (such as those representing peak demand) privacy issues may be such that restrictions on the use of the associated data may apply (e.g., limitations on the resolution and level of disaggregation).
44. Should the Applicant budget funds in this grant proposal to correct spatial location inaccuracies, particularly with respect to power plant locations? The accuracy of power plant location is relevant for any sea level rise modeling tool, as shown in Publication Number CEC‐500‐2012‐057, Figure 20, Sea Level Rise Impact Data Comparison (Sathaye et al., 2012).
These funds are only for work done for Cal-Adapt and its visualization tools. The “corrected” data sets, if needed, would come from other research projects. For example, projects looking at adaptation options for the energy infrastructure must make the most accurate possible GIS data. Cal-Adapt is being developed under Energy Commission contracts that require the research team to present data portraying California’s energy system and its vulnerability to climate change. Contract terms require Cal-Adapt to present publicly available data sets produced by related research projects, specifically those exploring energy sector vulnerability to climate change.
45. Regarding Attachment 4, the Project Narrative Form, Item 1.f., Technical Merit and Need, can a “clear and plausible measurement and verification plan” be a qualitative description of how use of the toolkit developed will allow for general understanding of energy savings and other benefits such as greater reliability and increased safety, or is this section not relevant for a project that consists entirely of a web-based visualization toolkit?
Section 1.f is not relevant for work done for Cal-Adapt.
Group 5: Developing Enhanced Socioeconomic and Land-Use Scenarios
46. There are a couple references to environmental justice issues in this group. Do you have a set of studies already that look at those issues? There are one or two references here, but are there more?
The best references to consider are the ones listed in the solicitation, particularly Cal-Enviroscreen (http://oehha.ca.gov/ej/ces2.html).
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Group 1: Regional Studies (I-IV) – Investigate Climate Vulnerability of the Natural Gas Energy System and Identify Resilience Options
47. This group indicates a preference to making four awards, and there’s three areas of inquiry, so is the intent to fund two awards in one area and one in each of the other two?
That is a likely outcome, but we have no mandate to distribute the four awards in that fashion. 
48. If we were to submit an application that covered more than one of those three areas of inquiry, should those be separate, or could more than one area of inquiry be included in a single application?
The solicitation indicates “Applications must address the RD&D needs of at least one of” three areas of inquiry. A single application could address more than one of those topics. However, applications addressing different regions should be separate.
49. Please clarify that applications should be separate only if you are proposing studies in different regions. What constitutes regions say with respect to sea level rise or wildfires?
Yes, applications addressing different regions should be separate. The Energy Commission has not defined particular regions but rather asks Applicants to coordinate closely with regional natural gas utilities and local governments to ensure that research results are useful to stakeholders. Applicants should define the region of interest in a manner that lends itself to useful research and coordination and indicate how they would partner “with at least one local and/or regional agency or California natural gas utility.” 
50. The Project Requirements for this group state that Applications must address the RD&D needs of at least one of three listed areas (i.e., Exploration of vulnerability of coastal natural gas storage, transmission, and distribution facilities to storm events and sea level rise). If an Applicant wishes to pursue more than one area, should each area be presented in a separate application or can they be presented together in a single application?
The project requires that Applicants must address RD&D in at least one of the three listed topic areas, but a single project may address RD&D needs in more than one topic area and is encouraged to do so if such is appropriate for the region under consideration. However, applications addressing different regions should be separate.
51. For this group, if an Applicant pursues the area of “exploration of vulnerability of coastal natural gas storage, transmission, and distribution facilities to storm events and sea level rise,” is the region of analysis expected to be the entire CA coast?
No, the region of analysis need not be, nor is it expected to be, the entire California coast. While delineation of regions is determined by the Applicant, the Energy Commission requests that the definition of “regional” adopted for a given project would lend itself to actual planning activities and implementation of resilience strategies.	
Group 2: Assessment of Fugitive Methane Emissions from the Natural Gas System – Commercial Buildings
52. For this group, what are the references to the statements (in bulleted list below) in paragraph 2? These statements do not seem to be connected to the five references listed at the end of this Group. We’d like to review the referenced studies:
· Opening sentence: “A current Energy Commission study …”
· Middle: “A recent study of methane emissions in Los Angeles, as well as initial measurements taken in several homes under the Energy Commission Study …”
· End: “An ongoing Energy Commission study is conducting a representative survey of methane emissions in California residences.”
The references are as follows:
Opening sentence: On-going Interagency Agreement with UC Davis, “Top-Down Quantification of Methane Emissions from California’s Natural Gas System”, contract 500-12-006.
Middle: Wennberg et al., 2012 (see the last reference on page 16) and personal communication with Dr. Marc Fischer from Lawrence Berkeley National Lab, who is the principal investigator for the research project identified above. 
End: Interagency Agreement with Lawrence Berkeley National Lab – ”Assessment of Residential Natural Gas Emissions,” contract 500-13-008.
Group 3: Probabilistic Seasonal and Decadal Forecasting for the Natural Gas System
53. Talking about electrical generation, is it all sources, conventional and renewables, so you’re looking at vulnerability of renewables like wind and solar that is connected to the grid? My work is involved in using seasonal forecasting for wind and solar, and how climate change affects wind and solar resources connected to the grid, so I think that might be useful tools for contribution?
It is the Applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements in Section II (page 11). The Energy Commission cannot at this time give advice as to whether or not your particular project is eligible for funding because not all details are known. Without speaking to your particular project, as a general matter, this call for proposals is for the natural gas system. Probabilistic weather/climate forecasts for wind, solar, and for other sources of energy are not appropriate for this call.	
54. Are you interested only in weather/climate effects?
Yes, we’re only interested in weather/climate probabilistic forecasts. The work does not include analyses of the natural gas system. 
55. Are you interested in NG demand for electricity generation, or only direct NG customers?
No, we are not interested in forecasts of natural gas demand. This project is designed to provide probabilistic weather/climate forecasts to people performing analyses of the natural gas system regarding prices and availability of natural gas to California customers. 
56. Has the Energy Commission defined the term of the work to be proposed (i.e., one, two, or three years, etc.)?
We suggest a minimum of 30 months. In this case, most of the work could be done in two years and the last six months could be used to finalize the final report. 
57. It was not completely clear about the requirements for partnering with the Energy Commission's Demand Forecasting Office and/or a public and/or municipal utility. Could this please be clarified? For example, are we required to identify, in our proposal, a public utility partner and/or a connection to the Energy Commission Demand Forecasting Office?
The Energy Commission Agreement Manager will facilitate the involvement of the Energy Commission’s Demand Forecasting Office, natural gas utilities, and other interested parties after the grant is in place. The Applicant does not need to identify specific individuals in the proposal. As to partnering with a public or municipal utility, that is incumbent on the recipient.
58. Is it okay to discuss proposed work with the Energy Commission Demand Forecasting Office in preparing the proposal so that forecast requirements can be clearly understood?
No, Applicants should not communicate with Energy Commission staff outside of the pre-Application workshop or written Q&A, unless it’s an administrative question. 
59. Could the time horizon of the desired forecasts be clarified (i.e., forecast(s) made by when, for when)? Similarly, is there a target spatial resolution?
Seasonal forecasts involve forecasts done months in advance. The probabilistic decadal forecasts are forecasts for the next 20 years. The exact time for the production of the forecasts are not predefined but it would be determined in consultation with the Technical Advisory Committee to be created for this research project. This Committee would be formed by staff from the Energy Commission Demand Forecast Office, representative from energy utilities, and other stakeholders. The spatial resolution is most likely representative meteorological stations used for analyses of natural gas forecasts. For example, for the forecasts of electricity demand in California, the Energy Commission uses about 16 meteorological stations in different parts of the State. The specific “stations” or geographical resolutions will be determined in consultation with the Technical Advisory Committee and are expected to be a manageable number of specific geographical locations and be representative of the climatic zones used for natural gas forecasts in the Energy Commission. 
60. Is there interest in extended range daily forecasts at the 1 to 2 week time scale?
Even though there is not a specific requirement for short time forecasts, the Technical Advisory Committee may recommend investigating this option. 
61. Are you interested in climate change time horizons beyond 2 decades into the future, i.e., to the end of this century?
No, we are only interested in probabilistic forecasts up to 20 years into the future. 
62. We assume this request includes a desire for forecasts of minimum temperature. Are other variables of interest as well? If so, which ones? Is the intended forecast target extremes or seasonal averages?
The Technical Advisory Committee in consultation with the selected research team will define the parameters of interest. Most likely the Technical Advisory Committee will be interested in maximum and minimum daily temperatures, precipitation, and perhaps other weather-related factors of importance to estimate natural gas demand. 
63. Are we correct in assuming that winter is the prime season of interest? Are other seasons also of interest?
Natural gas demand peaks in the winter but other times of the year are also of interest because they may affect the overall availability and price of natural gas available to customers in California. The Technical Advisory Committee, in consultation with the selected research team, will determine the seasons or times of interest.
64. Is there interest in knowing how strongly temperature and other variables are expected to change in response to anthropogenic climate change relative to fluctuating components due to natural variability?
Yes, the probabilistic forecasts must take into account climate change. 
Group 4: Assessment of Current and Potential Environmental Benefits of Residential Solar Water Heating in California, Drawing on Installed Performance and User Experience
65. This group says single-family homes specifically, but does that mean to exclude multi-family of any size, 2-4 unit, 5 unit, or greater?
Yes, the focus of this research is intended to be single-family homes, as indicated in the solicitation manual. This is because California has experienced such difficulty in achieving significant penetration of solar thermal water heating in single-family homes, even when sufficient rebates are available to render the technology cost-effective. Although the focus is single-family homes, the successful Applicant need not exclude consideration of multi-family homes. However, investigation of multi-family homes is not required by this solicitation.	
66. Would a conflict exist between Group 4: Assessment of Current and Potential Environmental Benefits of Residential Solar Water Heating if bidder were also to be working on California Public Utilities Commission California Solar Initiative Thermal project?
It is incumbent on the Recipient to determine whether or not work done under the proposed agreements would constitute a conflict of interest for that Recipient in relation to other contracts the recipient may have. Please note that the solicitation does not contain terms specific to conflicts of interest.
67. Does this group require physical measurement of emissions (e.g., as per fugitive methane emissions) from hot water heaters or will data from 3rd party emissions research suffice?
The application manual does indicate that we are looking for empirical measurements on performance of these systems (see Group 4 Background information on page 17). In particular, the solicitation seeks empirical measurements of energy performance of installed residential solar thermal water heating systems as a basis for assessing related environmental benefits, such reduced greenhouse gas emissions associated with reduced energy (natural gas and/or electricity) consumption. Greenhouse gas emissions implications would be derived from energy performance measurements and need not be empirically measured by the successful Applicant.
68. Approximately what portion of total effort for this group should address the three non-empirical activities? a) providing a basis for integration, b) delineating opportunities, and c) identifying performance influencing factors?
We deliberately have not specified certain percentages of effort to go to those specific pieces, but leave this to the discretion of the Applicant who is best able to discern where the Applicant’s work can make the greatest contribution. All three of those pieces are important.
69. Will any data regarding solar water heating (SWH) be made available beyond existing public sources such as the California Solar Initiative (CPUC 2008, CPUC 2014)?
There are no plans associated with this solicitation for making SWH data public. As indicated in the application manual, “Applications that leverage solar water heater performance data from the California Solar Initiative are particularly encouraged (CPUC 2008, CPUC 2014).” However, it is the responsibility of the Applicant to explore the logistics of leveraging such data sources.
70. The solicitation mentions “use of empirical measurements” – is there an expectation of fieldwork and measurements and performance monitoring in installed systems across a representation of building types? Or is the level of “real-world observations” intended to primarily utilize existing data sources possibly coupled with interviews of SWH owners/ contractors/ installers or high-level data collection e.g., consumption data?
[bookmark: _GoBack]The solicitation requests empirical measurements, through new field work or existing efforts that provide such data, to describe performance of installed systems in a sample buildings in California. As the focus of this proposed research is single-family homes, which have been particularly intransigent with regard to penetration of SWH, data on SWH performance in single-family homes would be most appropriate. If the successful recipient proposes to collect personal information from individuals such that the Information Practices Act (“IPA,” codified at Cal. Civil Code section 1798 et seq.) may apply, please be aware that the Energy Commission may impose special Terms & Conditions on the Recipient in order to ensure compliance with the IPA.
71. The PON mentions electrified water heating as another potential option - should the focus of proposals be on SWH only or is the Energy Commission looking for a comparison between electrified heating and SWH, e.g., in terms of respective possible specific niches and/or relative economic performance?
The focus of this effort should be on SWH in single-family residential homes in California. The mention of electrified water heating was simply for context.
72. The informational Q&A webinar seemed to focus on technical potential assessment of SWH. But the PON mentions delineating economic performance of residential SWH and cost-effective environmental benefits. Can the Energy Commission clarify the expected mix of analysis between technical potential assessment and cost-effectiveness and economic performance?
The objective of this solicitation is go beyond purely technical and economic analyses of potential benefits of residential SWH, and to use empirical performance data of actual installed systems to shed light on relationships between actual environmental benefits (e.g., decreased consumption of natural gas, decreased greenhouse gas and nitric oxide emissions) associated with use of solar water heating in single family homes and human factors ranging from hot water usage patterns to installation, operation, and maintenance.
73. Group 4 of this solicitation (page 18) states: “To the extent possible, provide a basis for integration of achievable benefits of residential SWH into long-term simulations of the energy system using capacity expansion models.” Is the Energy Commission asking about natural gas system expansion models and whether this would/could make a difference to the plans of natural gas distribution utilities in CA (and therefore Applicants could potentially include researchers/partners that run natural gas distribution or capacity expansion models)? Or is it capacity expansion models for additional electricity demand from backup/auxiliary support of wider deployment of SWH?
Group 4 should, to the extent possible, provide information that is necessary for integration of achievable benefits of residential SWH into long-term energy system simulations. However, we are not requesting Group 4 to actually perform this modeling. Rather, Group 4 should consider what long-term energy system simulations need to incorporate achievable benefits of residential SWH and use those needs to help guide research deliverables.



[bookmark: _Toc405446229][bookmark: _Toc405792924][bookmark: _Toc290029625]Match Funding and Commitment Letters
74.  As for letters of commitment from the sites, are we looking for letters of interest at the time of the proposal or a firm commitment?
Commitment letters are strongly recommended from each site in which the research is conducted for both solicitations. Since formal commitment letters may take time to obtain, Applicants must at least demonstrate that there is a high likelihood of being able to secure the collaboration from the relevant IOU. 
Please note that neither commitment letters nor support letters are a part of the screening criteria (GFO-15-303 page 31, PON-14-507 page 29). Therefore, Applicants will not be rejected if they do not include these letters. 

 

Definitions
75. Can you please define what will be considered a “commercial structure” and/or “commercial building”, and, if needed, provide a distinction between industrial versus commercial (i.e. scale, qualification, etc.) for this solicitation?
For this call for proposals, please use the definition used in the report “California Commercial End-use Survey,” CEC-400-2006-005 (http://www.energy.ca.gov/2006publications/CEC-400-2006-005/CEC-400-2006-005.PDF) . Table E-1 identifies the specific building types that are considered to be part of the commercial sector. 

